Public Document Pack

Pt

NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

PLEASE NOTE THAT PRAYERS WILL BE HELD AT 6.50PM BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL.

THE MAYOR REQUESTS THAT ANY MEMBER WISHING TO PARTICIPATE IN
PRAYERS BE IN ATTENDANCE IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER BY NO LATER THAN
6.45PM.

Dear Sir/Madam,

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme to be
held in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, Newcastle-under-Lyme,
Staffordshire, ST5 2AG on Wednesday, 16th April, 2014 at 7.00 pm.

BUSINESS

Apologies

Declarations of Interest

MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26" February 2014.

Mayors Announcements
Fair Trade Status for the Borough

Report from the Public Protection Committee held on 31st (Pages 11 - 32)
March 2014 - Age of Hackney Carriage Vehicles
7 Report from the Public Protection Committee - Enforced Sale (Pages 33 - 44)
Delegated Authority
Review of the Council's Constitution (Pages 45 - 56)
9 Proposed Changes to Electoral Arrangements (Pages 57 - 60)

10 STATEMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

To receive a statement by the Leader of the Council on the activities and decisions of
Cabinet and items included on the Forward Plan.

11 REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES



12

13

14

15

Chairs are requested to submit written reports (where possible) to the Democratic
Services Manager by Monday 14™ April 2014.

a) Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating Committee

b) Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee

C) Active and Cohesive Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

d) Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee

e) Economic Development and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee

f) Health Scrutiny Committee

REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE REGULATORY

COMMITTEES

a) Planning Committee

b) Licensing Committee

c) Public Protection Committee

d) Audit and Risk Committee

MOTIONS OF MEMBERS

A notice of motion other than those listed in Standing Order 19 must reach the Chief
Executive ten clear days before the relevant Meeting of the Council.

RECEIPT OF PETITIONS
To receive from Members any petitions which they wish to present to the Council.

STANDING ORDER 18 - URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any communications which pursuant to Standing Order No18 are, in the
opinion of the Mayor, of an urgent nature and to pass thereon such resolutions as may be
deemed necessary.

Yours faithfully

N

Chief Executive



NOTICE FOR COUNCILLORS

Fire/Bomb Alerts

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately, following
the fire exit signs. Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts.

Fire exits are to be found either side of the rear of the Council Chamber and at the
rear of the Public Gallery.

On exiting the building Members, Officers and the Public must assemble at the
front of the former Hubanks store opposite to the Civic Offices. DO NOT re-enter
the building until advised to by the Controlling Officer.

Attendance Record

Please sign the Attendance Record sheet, which will be circulating around the
Council Chamber. Please ensure that the sheet is signed before leaving the
meeting.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Council Chamber.

Teal/Coffee

Refreshments will be available at the conclusion of the meeting, or in the event of a
break occurring, during that break.

Notice of Motion

A Notice of Motion other than those listed in Standing Order 19 must reach the
Chief Executive ten clear days before the relevant Meeting of the Council. Further
information on Notices of Motion can be found in Section 5, Standing Order 20 of
the Constitution of the Council.



This must not rescind a
resolution or rejected
resolution of the previous
6 months except in

MOTION (ORIGINAL)
A proposal is put by a Member and
seconded by another who may
reserve his/her speech until later or

The Mayor may require it to
be put in writing if not as set
out in the agenda or report

accordance with Rule 14 speaks now
N
/ \ A motion may be withdrawn by mover with
DEBATE ON THE consent of seconder and of the Council which will
SUBSTANTIVE B be granted or refused without debate
MOTION B )
Any Member may speak - v ~N
once for up to 5 minutes CONSENT AMENDMENT (only one at a time)
solely on the motion The original A member proposes a change to the wording of the
until such time as the mover consents motion (this can't negate the original proposal)
Mayor considers the to amendment and is seconded
matter has been . J
sufficiently debated or
-

thereis a c|c15ure motion

/
/ REPLY
Some Members have a right of reply which they
need not exercise; in order:
e  Mover of any amendment
e  Original mover
e  Chair of Committee or Sub-Committee if a

motion is a committee recommendation
e Leader

o

~

J

NAMED VOTE
If 12 ask a vote must
be named

SUBSTANTIVE VOTE
e Ashow of hands
majority
e Mayor has (2™)
casting vote

\ 4 \ 4
YES NO
Resolution of the Resolution falls

Council

A 4

Another motion
may be moved

-

AMENDMENT DEBATE
Any Member may speak once for up to 5 minutes solely on
the amendment until such time as the Mayor considers
there has been sufficient debate or a closure motion

-

~

AMENDMENT REPLY
Some Members have a right of reply in this order:
e  Amendment mover
e  Original motion mover
e  Chair where motion was a committee
recommendation
e | eader

J

~N

NAMED VOTE
If 12 ask a vote must be
named

AMENDMENT VOTE

e Show of hands majority

e Mayor has(z”d) casting
vote

A 4 A 4

YES
Becomes the new
substantive motion

NO
Return to original
motion

A 4

FURTHER AMENDMENT
Or go to debate on
substantive motion




Agenda Iltem 3

MEETING OF THE FULL COUNCIL
Wednesday, 26th February, 2014
Present:- The Mayor, Councillor Eddie Boden — in the Chair

Councillors Miss Walklate, Mrs Cornes, Welsh, Mrs Johnson, Studd,
Mrs Burnett, Clarke, D Becket, Mrs Beech, Bannister,
Hambleton, Matthews, Olszewski, Mrs Hambleton, Wemyss,
Wilkes, Mrs Williams, Williams, Mrs Astle, Fear, Hailstones,
Mrs Hailstones, Allport, Eagles, Kearon, Taylor.J, Waring,
Miss Olszewski, Loades, Holland, Bailey, Miss Cooper, Jones,
Miss Reddish, Robinson, Mrs Shenton, Mrs Simpson,
Mrs Heesom, Snell, Sweeney, Tagg, Mrs Bates, White,
Miss Mancey, Mrs Burgess, Eastwood, Miss Baker, Mrs Peers,
Plant, Stringer, Stubbs, Taylor.M, Turner and Mrs Winfield

APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Clir Howells, Clir Cairns, Clir Mrs Heames, Clir Cooper
and ClIr Miss Rout.

MINUTES

Resolved:  That the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 27" November
be agreed as a correct record.

MAYORS ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor invited all Members of the Council to join him at the Annual Civic Mass
that was to be held on Sunday 2" March 2013 from 9.30am.

Tickets for the Spring Ball were also now available and could be purchased from
Peter Whalan.

The Newcastle Male Voice Choir would be performing a concert in aid of the Mayor’s
Charity Fund at Newcastle Methodist Church on Saturday 12" April 2014 from
7.30pm.

REPORT FROM THE PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING HELD ON 3RD
FEBRUARY 2014

Resolved: That Council confirm the recommendations of the Public Protection
Committee made at the meeting held on 3rd February 2014.

APPOINTMENTS OF MONITORING OFFICER, SCRUTINY CHAIR AND OUTSIDE
BODY REPRESENTATIVE

Resolved: (a) That the Audit Manager (Elizabeth Dodd) be appointed as the
Council’'s Monitoring Officer with immediate effect.

(b) That Clir Sandra Hambleton be appointed to the Staffordshire County Council
Corporate Parenting Panel as the Borough Council Representative.

Page 5



Error! Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name. - Error!
Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name.

(c) That Clir Paul Waring be appointed as the Chair of the Transformation and
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

(d) That Council note the changes in committee membership.

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS AND COUNCIL TAX 2014 - 2015

Members received a report setting out the recommendations of Cabinet for the
Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2014/15 and set out the recommendations for

setting the 2014/15 Council Tax.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources introduced the report and moved the
recommendations listed in Appendix A (a to n).

An amendment was submitted by Clir Sweeney and was seconded by Clir Loades. A
copy of the amendment was circulated to members.

The amendment was as follows:

‘After the words”.....set out in appendix a” add

To raise £13,500 by capping car mileage rates paid to council staff to the HM
Revenue and Customs rate of 45p per mile (over nine months further to statutory
consultation period of 90 days) in 2014/2015 which will rise to £18,000 over a full

year.

To raise £10,000 by the abolition of the 7" cabinet member and a return to daytime
cabinet meetings along with our withdrawl from the cooperative innovation network.

To raise £30,000 by withdrawing our financial support to the Town Centre
Partnership.

To raise £50,000 by reducing our revenue investment fund to £50,000.

To support our local community centres and their management committees by
increasing their repairs and maintenance budget to the sun of £103,500 funded by
the savings identified above.

Clir M Taylor declared an interest in the amendment due to his employment as the
Town Centre Manager. Clir Taylor left the meeting whilst discussions on the
amendment were held.

A named vote was taken on the amendment as follows:

Allport — Against Fear — For Peers — For Waring — Against

Astle — Against Mrs Hailstones - | Plant — Against Welsh — Against
For

Bailey — Against Hailstones — For Reddish — Abstain | Wemyss — Abstain

Baker — Against Mrs Hambleton — | Robinson — Against | White — Abstain
Against

Bates — Against Hambleton — | Shenton — Against | Wilkes — Abstain

Page 6




Against

Becket- Abstain

Heesom - For

Simpson — against

Mrs Williams
Against

Beech — Against

Holland — For

Snell — Against

Williams — Against

Boden - Against

Johnson — Against

Stringer — Against

Winfield - Against

Burgess — Against

Jones - Abstain

Stubbs — Against

Burnett — Against

Kearon — Against

Studd — Abstain

Clarke — Against

Loades — For

Sweeney — For

Miss Cooper — For

Mancey — For

Tagg — For

Cornes — Abstain

Matthews — For

J Taylor — Against

Eagles- Against

Olszewski -
Against

Turner — Against

Eastwood - Against

Miss Olszewski —
Against

Walklate - Abstain

Against: 32
For: 12
Abstain: 9

The amendment was rejected and debate returned to the substantive motion.

Members thanked all officers who had been involved in the preparation of the budget
and complimented them on a job very well done under difficult circumstances.

The substantive motion had already been moved by the portfolio holder it was
seconded and a named vote requested. The results of the vote were as follows:

Allport — For Fear — Abstain Peers — Abstain Waring — For
Astle - For Mrs Hailstones - | Plant- For Welsh — For
Abstain
Bailey — For Hailstones — | Reddish — For Wemyss — For
Abstain
Baker — For Mrs Hambleton — | Robinson — For White — For
For
Bates — For Hambleton — For Shenton — For Wilkes — For
Becket - For Heesom - Abstain | Simpson — For Mrs Williams —For
Beech — For Holland — Abstain Snell — For Williams — For
Boden - For Johnson — For Stringer — For Winfield - For
Burgess — For Jones - For Stubbs — For M Matthews - for
Burnett — For Kearon — For Studd - For

Page 7




Error! Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name. - Error!
Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name.

Clarke — For

Loades — Abstain

Sweeney — Abstain

Miss Cooper — Abstain

Mancey — Abstain

Tagg — Abstain

Page 8

Cornes — For Matthews — | J Taylor — For
Abstain
Eagles- For Olszewski — For Turner — For
Eastwood - For Miss Olszewski — | Walklate - For
For
For: 42
Abstain: 12

Resolved: That the Council approves the recommendations set out in Appendix ‘A’.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/2015

A report was submitted requesting approval of the Treasury Management Strategy
for 2014/15, including the Prudential Indicators, Investment Strategy and Minimum
Revenue Provision Strategy contained within it.

Resolved:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d) That the Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy contained within the report be
approved.

That the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2014/15 be approved.
That the Prudential Indicators contained within the report be approved.

That the Investment Strategy contained within the report be approved.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

A report was submitted for members to consider and approve the Capital Strategy
2014 to 2017.

Resolved: That the Capital Strategy be approved.

LOCALISM ACT - PUBLICATION OF A PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR
2014/2015

Members received a report in relation to The Localism Act 2011 which required local
authorities to prepare and publish a pay policy statement for each financial year. The
statement set out the authority’s policies relating to the remuneration of its chief
officers, the remuneration of its lowest paid employees and the relationship between
the remuneration of its chief officers and the remuneration of its employees who are
not chief officers.




10.

11.

12.

13.

Resolved: That the Pay Policy Statement attached at Appendix A to the report be
approved and published on the council’s website by 31 March 2014.

STATEMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Members received a report from the Leader of the Council on the activities and
decisions of Cabinet and items included on the forward plan.

Resolved: That the report be received
REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Written and verbal reports were provided by the Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees.

Members wished to send their best regards to Clir George Cairns who was currently
unwell.

Resolved: That the reports be received.
REPORTS OF THE CHAIRS OF THE STATUTORY COMMITTEES
Written and verbal reports were provided by the chairs of the Statutory Committees.

The Chair of the Planning Committee thanked officers for their dedicated work and
time spent in relation to the Baldwins Gate application. Other members also thanked
the Chair of the Committee for his work In relation to the application which had
included a site visit and a decision made under difficult circumstances.

Resolved: That the reports be received.
QUESTIONS TO THE MAYOR, CABINET MEMBERS AND COMMITTEE CHAIRS
The following question had been submitted by Clir Becket:

Taking into account of the Environment Agency objection to building on a Level 3a
Flood Zone, the officer recommendation to defer in order to explore a solution
acceptable to all parties, and the events in Somerset and the Thames/Severn valleys
why did the leading group not show leadership and accept officer recommendations
to defer the Aldi application. The effect of the vote is to take the decision concerning
Newecastle Flood Plains out of local hands to be decided at Westminster.

The Leader responded that there was no whip in relation to the Planning Committee
and that reasons for the decision would need to be sought from individual members.

The following question had been submitted by Clir Holland:

| asked the Leader at the last meeting of Council (Minutes, item 5), why his
administration had dithered and vacillated in dealing with the Ryecroft site, which the
Council owns in partnership with the County Council. He responded at that meeting
that it was the County Council that was responsible for the lack of movement, and
promised to publish minutes of a meeting between him and SCC representatives that
prove he is right. Will the Leader please produce those minutes?

Page 9



Error! Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name. - Error!
Unknown document property name.Error! Unknown document property name.

The Leader confirmed that the information would be produced by the following
Friday.

THE MAYOR, COUNCILLOR EDDIE BODEN
Chair

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 6

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

1. Public Protection Committee Decision in Relation to the Age of Hackney Carriages
Submitted by: Head of Business Improvements, Central Services, and Partnerships
Portfolio: Safer Communities

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Purpose of the Report

To request that Council endorse the decisions made by the Public Protection Committee at its
meetings held on the 31 March 2014 concerning the Councils policy relating to the age of Hackney
Carriage vehicles.

Recommendation

That the Council ratify the recommendation made by the Public Protection Committee at the
meeting held on 31° March 2014.

Reasons

The decision made by the Public Protection Committee relates to a matter of Council policy and as
such falls within the remit of full Council to endorse prior to any implementation.

1. Background

On the 5™ September 2013 the Public Protection Committee resolved that consultation should be
undertaken to seek the views of those concerned following a proposal from officers that the
Councils age policy for Hackney Carriages be amended.

Following the consultation the Public Protection Committee met on the 31® March 2014 and
resolved that:-

It be recommended to full Council that as from 1% January 2015, all hackney carriage
vehicles that are saloon cars will cease to be relicensed when they are eight years of age.

A copy of the reports considered by the Committee are attached as an Appendix.
2. Issues

All Councils have a duty to periodically review the policies and procedures for licensing Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire vehicles.

The Council has a duty to protect the public and to ensure that the vehicles that it licences shall be
in a suitable mechanical condition, shall be safe, and comfortable.

2. Options Considered

No other options were considered by the Committee

4. Proposal

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED
1 Page 11



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

e That the Council ratify the decisions of the Public Protection Committee

5. Reasons for Preferred Solution

To improve the standards of Hackney Carriage saloon vehicles, and to achieve parity with the same
vehicles licensed as Private Hire.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy and Corporate Priorities

e Creating a cleaner, safer and sustainable Borough

7. Legal and Statutory Implications

The power to ratify these decisions lies with the Council

8. Egquality Impact Assessment

Button in his book on Taxis — Licensing Law and Practice states that “Whilst it is accepted that older
vehicles can be used successfully as hackney carriages......... the purpose of any age limit is to try
and ensure that the licensed vehicles are safe, reliable and comfortable as possible. Any age policy
would not in itself be arbitrary, because it must be a policy and the local authority must then
consider any application that falls outside the age policy on its own individual merits.”

Members will recall that he over-riding purpose behind the proposal is to assist the Council ensure
the safety, reliability, and overall standards of the vehicles it licences.

9. Financial and Resource Implications

There have been objections from Hackney Carriage drivers in relation to the detrimental affect such
a change could mean for them.

10. Major Risks
Possible challenge from the Hackney Carriage Trade if the policy is amended

13. Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

Public Protection Committee 3™ February 2014, 315 March 2014

14. List of Appendices

Agenda Item 11a from the 3" February 2014
Agenda item 11 from 31% March 2014

15. Background Papers

Public Protection Agenda 3rd February 2014
Public protection Agenda 31st March 2014

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED
Page 12 2



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE
3" FEBRUARY 2014

Submitted by: Head of Business Improvement and Partnerships

Hackney Carriage Age Policy-Consultation

Recommendation

That the the proposal in connection with the amendment relating to the Councils current
age police in connection with Hackney Carriages be adopted and that the dates for
commencement be as follows:-

(a) firstly that from April 1% 2014 in relation to applications to licence Hackney carriage
vehicles that are purpose built and wheelchair accessible, the vehicles shall be less than 5
years of age when first tested. These vehicles will continue to be relicensed on passing
consecutive annual tests

(b) Secondly that as from the 1% January 2015 all hackney Carriage vehicles that are

saloon cars will cease to be relicensed when they are 8 years of age.

1.

Background

1.1 The Committee will recall the resolution at their meeting on the 5" September 2013 to consult

the Hackney Carriage Trade about the proposal to amend the Council’s current age policy
regarding Hackney Carriage Vehicles.

1.2 A copy of the report is attached at page 49

21

2.2

All Hackney Carriage proprietors were written to asking their views on the proposal. The
proposal is that:-

Saloon type vehicles will be less than 5 years of age when tested but will cease to be
relicensed when they are 8 years of age.

As for those vehicles purpose-built for Hackney Carriage purposes the proposal is that these
types of vehicle must be less than 5 years of age when first tested but can remain licensed
for as long as they continue to pass consecutive annual tests”.

Issues

All Council’s have a duty to periodically review the policies and procedures for licensing
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles.

The responses from the Consultation are :-
Firstly, a petition with 87 signatures .The petition disagrees with the proposal and outlines

the reason for disagreeing. It also proposes that other types of vehicles be considered for
licensing as Hackney Carriages.

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

-1- Page 13



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

4.

A copy of the petition can be seen at page 55
Secondly, 25 individual replies have been received, these fall into 3 categories:

a) Responses rejecting the proposal 16
b) Responses agreeing with the proposal 3
c) Letters returned with no indication of any view on the proposal 6

The majority of responses disagree with the proposal, the objection to the proposal is mainly
based on the financial implication the change in the age policy would have for Hackney
Carriage owners.

Other reasons given for objecting to the proposal are that modern cars are more reliable and
have a greater longevity.

It is also the view of some of the objectors that the Council should maintain the current policy
for licensing Hackney Carriages.

Button in his book on Taxis — Licensing Law and Practice states that “Whilst it is accepted
that older vehicles can be used successfully as hackney carriages......... the purpose of any
age limit is to try and ensure that the licensed vehicles are safe, reliable and comfortable as
possible. Any age policy would not in itself be arbitrary, because it must be a policy and the
local authority must then consider any application that falls outside the age policy on its own
individual merits.”

Members will recall that he over-riding purpose behind the proposal is to assist the Council
ensure the safety, reliability, and overall standards of the vehicles it licences.

Proposal

That the committee resolve to adopt the proposal, and that the dates for commencement be
as follows:- firstly that from April 1% 2014 applications to licence Hackney carriage vehicles
that are purpose built and wheelchair accessible, the vehicles shall be less than 5 years of
age when first tested. These vehicles will continue to be relicensed on passing consecutive
annual tests

.Secondly that as from the 1% January 2015 all hackney Carriage vehicles that are saloon
cars will cease to be relicensed when they are 8 years of age.

The Committee can resolve to:

0] Adopt the proposal

(i) Amend the proposal

(iii) Reject the proposal (and by so doing continue with the inequality between Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire).

(iv) Defer making any decision to explore any alternative method of achieving parity in
terms of the age policy for both types of vehicles.

Recommendation

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Page 14

-2



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

That the Committee adopt the proposal.

5. Equality Impact Assessment

The issues of inequality have been highlighted in the report.

6. Financial Implications

Failure to address the inequality may lead to an implication of a financial nature.

7. Reasons for the Preferred Solution

To continue to review the Council’s policy relating to Hackney Carriage Vehicles.

8. Legal and Statutory Implications

Under section 47(1) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides that a
district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage under the Act of
1847 such conditions as the district council may consider to be reasonably necessary.

A high Court case in 1992 held that it was possible under Section 47(1) to impose age limits
to improve the reliability, safety and overall standards of the vehicles licensed by the
Council.

9. Background Papers

The original Committee report from 5" September 2013.

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational
-3- Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE
Thursday 5th SEPTEMBER 2013

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE POLICY

Submitted by: Head of Business Improvement and Partnerships

Purpose

For the Committee to consider whether to amend the permitted age limit for licensed vehicles and
to recommend that the Hackney Carriage Trade be consulted as part of the ongoing review of the
Council’s Taxi Licensing Policy.

Recommendation

That Hackney Carriage Proprietors be consulted on the proposals contained in this report
and a further report on the outcome be submitted to a future meeting of this Committee.

1. Background

1.1 Currently Private Hire Vehicles must be less than 5 years old when they are presented for 1%
registration with the Council and are licensed until they are a maximum of 8 years old. Hackney
Carriage Saloon Vehicles must be less than 5 years old on 1% registration and may remain
licensed so long as they continue to pass the vehicle test. Purpose built Hackney Carriages
may be up to 10 years old on 1% registration and may remain licensed for so long as they pass
the vehicle test.

1.2 The following resolutions reveal how the present conditions have been arrived at:-

9" February 1993 — Resolution 1322/93 Environmental Health Committee relating to Private
Hire Vehicles - Private Hire Vehicles Licences — Conditions.

A detailed report on the Council’s present policy in respect of the licensing of Private Hire
Vehicles and in particular on the age of vehicles currently licensed was submitted for
consideration.

Members were advised of a trend for applicants to attempt to licence vehicles which are in
excess of 5 years old at first registration and did not fall into the category of being in the
condition of a 5-year old vehicle.

It was recommended that, in order to avoid future problems of this nature and to upgrade the
condition of the Private Hire Vehicles, the condition be amended so as to exclude the
licensing of all vehicles over 5 years at first registration and that no vehicles over 8 years old,
except mini buses, will be considered for renewal.

Resolved:

That the amended licence conditions for Private Hire Vehicles as detailed in the report be
approved with effect from 1% January 1994.

February 1995 — Resolution 1374/95, Hackney Carriage — Conditions.

-1- Page 17



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

Page 18

A detailed report on the Council’'s present policy in respect of the licensing of Hackney
Carriage Vehicles and in particular on the age of vehicles currently licensed was submitted
for consideration. It was proposed that no vehicles over 5 years old at first registration
should be licensed and that no vehicles over 8 years old, except purpose-built vehicles
should be considered at renewal.

Resolved:
That there be no change to the present policy.

No record can be found of any earlier resolution allowing Hackney Carriage Saloon Vehicles
to be re-licensed regardless of its age. However it is implicit that it existed by the wording of
the Resolution of 1374/95.

Members will recall that on the 30" November 2009 an item concerning the age of hackney
carriages was considered and a resolution was made to defer the matter to a future date. A
copy of the original item can be seen at Appendix 1 (page 53).

Issues

There needs to be parity between Private Hire Vehicles and Hackney Carriage Vehicles
otherwise the Council may be at risk of a challenge in the Courts. It is difficult to rationalise
why for example an 8-year-old Ford Mondeo is not suitable to continue as a Private Hire
Vehicle, yet the same vehicle could continue to be licensed if it were a Hackney Carriage.
The only difference between the two types of vehicles is the method by which they are
booked by the passenger.

Members of the Private Hire Trade are understandably swapping to Hackney Carriage to
take advantage of the unlimited access to Hackney Carriage Licences, and, because of the
favourable age policy. Should this trend continue it is feasible that in the future the Council
will be licensing an ever increasing fleet of ageing Hackney Carriage saloon vehicles.

The Court Case Newcastle City Council-v-Berwick-upon-Tweed Borough Council has served
to educate the Taxi trade as a whole that Hackney Carriages can take Private Hire bookings
from outside its controlling district, and as a consequence, where an authority has no limit on
the number of Hackney licences and has an age policy that allows vehicles to remain
licensed regardless of its age, that authority will be licensing a disproportionate number of
Hackney Carriage Vehicles purely to carry out pre-booked work (private hire) outside of its
controlled district.

Vehicles which have been purpose-built for use as Hackney Carriages, which have better

access for the disabled, should retain an age policy which provides an incentive that
encourages applicants to provide this type of vehicle.

Options Considered

To consult Hackney Carriage Proprietors on the proposal to amend the age condition for
Hackney Carriage Saloon Vehicles to bring it in line with that of Private Hire Vehicles;

To consult Hackney Carriage Proprietors on the proposal that purpose built Hackney
Carriage Vehicles should be less than 5 years old on 1° registration but otherwise permit
that the vehicle continue to remain licensed for so long as it passes the vehicle test.



3.3.

41

5.1

10.

11.

12.

To make no amendment to the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy.

Proposal

That a consultation with the Hackney Carriage Trade be undertaken commencing the 1°
October2013 for a period of 12 weeks on the proposal that the saloon vehicles policy for the
licensing of Hackney Carriages be revised to reflect that of Private Hire Vehicles, which is,
that vehicles must be less than 5 years of age when tested and will cease to be licensed
when they are 8 years of age.

As for those vehicles purpose-built for Hackney Carriage purposes, the policy be amended
so that these types of vehicles be less than 5 years of age when tested but can remain
licensed for as long as they continue to pass consecutive annual tests. This would then
preserve the incentive for operators to invest in these disabled access vehicles.

Reasons for Preferred Solution

To continue to review the Council’s conditions relating to Hackney Carriage Vehicles.

Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy and Corporate Priorities

In line with the Council’s objectives — Creating a Clean, Safe and Sustainable Borough.

Legal and Statutory Implications

Possible challenge from the Hackney Carriage Trade if the policy is amended

Equality Impact Assessment

Financial and Resource Implications

Cost of carrying out the consultation

Key Decision Information

Earlier Committee Resolutions

Background Papers

23 Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



AP0 1y 1

CONFIDENTIAL

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM TO THE
PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE

30 November 2009

1. HACKNEY CARRIAGE AGE LIMITS (RESOLUTION 365/10)

Purpose

To inform this Committee of the results of a consultation undertaken with Newcastle’s
Hackney Carriage owners about the Council’s proposed change of Policy in relation to the
age of Hackney Carriage Vehicles.

Recommendation

That, notwithstanding the replies and the consultation the proposed changes to the
Policy be adopted.

1.

Background

1.1 Committee may recall that at its meeting held on 21 September 2009
they considered an item, which proposed changes to the Council's
policy on the licensing of Hackney Carriage Vehicles. Specifically the
age at which vehicles can first be licensed and when they should
cease to be licensed.

2. Issues

21 The holders of Hackney Carriage licences were consulted about the
changes and of the 47 who were consulted 18 replied as individuals,
23 signed a petition, and a letter was received from the Newcastle and
Kidsgrove Hackney Carriage Association (See Appendix A).

All the replies indicated no support for the proposed changes.
However, there was some acceptance that there should be an age
when vehicles should cease to be licensed.

2.2  The Council currently has 3 types of vehicles licensed as Hackney
Carriages.

1. Those that are purpose-built, i.e. designed and built to a
specification laid down by the Public Carriage office.

2. Those that are a conversion from another type of vehicle, usually a
van or M.P.V. and have a certification or type approval knows as
M1, which is a standard laid down by V.O.S.A.

3. Finally, Saloon Cars.

Page 21



Page 22

2.3

Objections to the proposal were mainly one of cost; however the
amounts of money quoted in the replies used the most expensive
scenario, that of purchasing a new vehicle.

There is no requirement for a vehicle to be new when making an
application for a Hackney Carriage licence. In the last 14 years of all
the vehicles licensed as Hackney Carriage’s only 2 have been new
vehicles.

Research by your officers has shown that a saloon car suitable for
licensing can be purchased for less than £5000 (examples provided at
Appendix B have been sourced from the auto-trader web site).

Examples of purpose-built and M1 conversions sourced from Taximart
web site are shown as follows:

V.W. Transporter M1 conversion 2006 model £16,995
Eurotaxi M1 conversion wheelchair access 2005 £7,495
Eurobus M1 conversion wheelchair access 2005 £6,395

Using these prices as a guideline and the fact that the proprietors will
spend less on the upkeep and maintenance of a newer vehicle and
the fact that it may have some residual value when it ceases to be
licensed helps to show that the proposal is not as financially damaging
as the replies indicate.

In your officers view implementing the changes would have the effect
of upgrading and modernising the Council's Hackney Carriage fleet,
and would go towards creating a greener and safer fleet.

Links to Corporate Priorities

In line with the Council objective, creating a greener & safer Borough.

Financial Implications

None.

Implications for Crime and Disorder

None.

List of Appendices

A — replies to consultation
B — saloon cars suitable for licences.



Newcastle Under Lyme Hackney Carriage Association
Dated; 25 December 2013

Re; Age restriction policy proposal response
Please note we the undersigned;

e Strongly disagree with the proposed introduction of Age restrictions to Hackney
Carriage Vehicles

e The current policy on Age of Hackney Carriage Vehicles is appropriate and very
sensible

e The current vehicles in operation are well maintained and of very good standard;
and any change to current policy will have no significant benefit to the public

e Introduction of any new age restriction will result in higher cost burden to the
drivers, which risks forcing some of derivers out of business under extremely difficult
current financial clement.

Re; Type of Hackney Carriage Vehicles Policy

Please note we the undersigned;

e Propose updating of the current outdated Policy on Type of Hackney Carriage
Vehicles, that restricts the fleet just to ‘saloon type’ vehicles

e There is a high demand for inclusion of MPV (Multi-Passenger Vehicles) and
People Carriers to the current policy of Type of Hackney Carriage Vehicles (up to
9 seated capacity)

e Those licence holders with saloon Type vehicles should have option to introduce
MPV’s and People Carrier’s or vice versa

e Incorporation of MPV’s and People Carrier’s will present a great opportunity to
introduce a much better mixed of taxi fleet offer to the public; and meet the
demand for larger families and groups of people especially at the weekends.

Many Thanks.
Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number
TR ULHAGQUE At D093 4t i 34
CaL Ga Grbft—— ((TZ | 00l | fuSif
r/ ‘ / — ] e ——r—
Arjr Azir. A FID gy |99 3

Pagé 23



VEDL X e

w-l s R

28 Decernber 2072

Page 24

!17Z,/
(

__* Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number
HAS(A N \ HA DAR KHAL y 3 | ooagqq 10309
AT - e l,épyé‘ ololhF [ 13 9F
AN A e o DS MO 13 feiy o §
WAL] J¢Hay GHAL2LAT K/ H" Y DAY | G
Tog. 2 merives)) TeMLZ mE/JMu‘J) Hool 3¢ 8782
CRDUL Lo | Taleed GLo ey !
W4 pmmaD _ZUer@AR WZ 009357 | 99/2
AR MEHMuD| T MEHA| 069743 |io 504
M NAE EM [ A N HDolZo | 1959y
] o B : ,.
A2 Manmaae 7 o Ol Hpelsy | THRE
Khalid sawie bl — | HDoo® Bgh BLS 2
Loaet SANEW [N \*D’\“\\ LA 00920 | 2uRb
M ettt Hpug one 4// [ / /~—/ 0oy 53¢ | 1852
Mofia pAMED - 2ADR 1 . .ﬂaﬂu oallig™d | {66877
Feayy o NEH TR oY AeHTAIL | o o o ) ouUS
Mollgr i e D /{j"l 24 W Jc{ : «/%Z COT43 | 4% 70
RAZ [ Q- HUsSA e HUuss H o137 A3 14
Hasawe 2zaman atly H’ by Cly [ 00922 [IG )
SATIAD Kby sl S eflersstton /4 Do 157 ST 7
Ol oatens| Cre | 0102HS | g7
SH)ID HeeHn | Sesin | gpoid0 0678
M.l o ToM wllatn |1, CHE 11087
S PUSIALIL S L HUuss/H) (ol Z} @acﬁ;@
A &fiqé;/(j Y lltw ~ L 0aqq (T Zah /wgm‘:]




2 Decerad,er 2072

Name (print) .., _ Signature Badge Number | Plate Number
xr po77 f(/(Z/éc&& olo (3L oS 29
MoAMMED  SAFEA- \/\ SHNC L N PETHG | B A G
LASPAO g | 003 | Wy
LM B 7.d R- M ki tad | 010843 | Ap1F
O el |y )T LD ovAT togn s
e © Qacda L 9@ — 0oSS \ OO
L Loy g (Y4 P iolf70 | 9350
ssul jrek | Al | ofbze| 5870
SHAKEEL  ALMAD %‘“‘/\ O\eoSo | [OTEL
P AL H MmN %S 002872 (V0 {5
SN IS aegD b |=m g
MR UL UAL ojoaf] el
M- A ZAe | AR U0 | 460
Mr Mahbebor Rihnn G | 0093723/ 9505
ASHY Woslo — | & 1. |977277 [2379%
M- TAXN M{"1a 0094332 | SY T3
2D Angud A Anis) | HDO 142 GESS
AB PUL-gALIMm o | HDoI36 |3H2 0
Ran zahiy AmE)  Fakmed | o0 2023 lob 8
ZECSHAN Mumic | fglottord 0078L5 |T432
/;/;Lf/fm/ W tsirsis /M//ﬁ/ " boT8e | 9432
TERESD T otv X N Soneo 009 8, | £423
ZRARAL!  SAEED | g2 7365 |2507
seny mobisthit | (A——n ~ | 009218, | loo1
Vo A



L - L LR

lﬂ-r 1 !

,ng c eu/ée// 20 oi2

Page 26

Name {print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number
SHEERAZ - Husspivo | Been?) | HDoLSS | 9344
SAIIN HusTAN %{M/M _\zogse | G740
TLAAS AYNA AHMED D kel Ofoou | ﬁ qL,g)o

KTEEQ or REmams | Dden (010108 1025
SHIMID  IAJEEH 1.%% (‘:) & | 0/0§30 /‘05{88
ZULEIpARWUSSHT 7, pusshtd | ppe| e | o 640
WAJA ToaaR KHaY | - Ko oot 1L | 107 4 X

AsiE M PALTE %&L—’X 2lon?3 | in38S

MDD, ABDUL Acv AL A HDOIé i A4
blebid HusSAly A7~ HDp 0iuR |1THEH

ZAFAR 19605 | 52 2098(3 |28 [
pishe s ) Rhaigd -G8 | aeq 284 |94 S8
1 )sMing Rua>-Sting %‘W _ lemas3e | 479y
Saxzad WALDER T T aipYs) | lot bl

Mibersad TR0 | " apn |0folz s (06774

M PHsopp ANE G olobol | AQyy
O , Aped ik HCF1i4 y HDQISE JOALS-
TED- T 9BAL N _OO Mz |9 @Q&’;
A\ ek e/ g(»j ) M ; _4}_:2(/’2;’24? (0D Ry

5 \/} =1 D
“TAWAB_IKH ) =2 | coARo] |19 B

AGLL  HuSSALY | eSSl poAtle | A4 T¢
0 ANmAD BUAZ T HDIo52| 8L 2
M RHID \‘)‘-’SSW\ W | HOO/Q% RS YAS

Weaq floed Vezee [ ygrzd /1 (17
4




Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number

e )
‘Dr\\\\ o ANRYCEE S, N\ﬂ}&\) SR\l T -AEN\C

Teme Berc Ry/ QS| Suly
Wl AwITS | pafgen 9<9< | 494y

L Klisensitn| (O Cuodhbixo | 00 %S ad g1l

ety ooy 2 //V %,// ‘ / A€ 7 | &4

P Me\lipeS ok Do PQ\&L;\\/\‘, RS 1Y Ty 24

GURDIP Sivad Yuaoal | G K’P&Amm// cvas531 fjo3ob

Page 27



’1' r \[T Ay
7 >’/)«cr%lxa ~ 2002
Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number

Page 28




B A ——

Ao Deverider 2212

Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number

A
Aol d O HDAU oMo 5 x|

wagws aze | W2 € 922 | quyy

V) 1 A ZAD | Zone b4 2. GeFT ocsegdo \
gﬁ?/@éé//éff&/é,;ﬁ(f r@/ffV_ﬂ} o/loSSYy | oS XK

i
—_—
I

Page 29



25 Pecorbr 2012

Name (print)

Signature

Badge Number

Plate Number

Page 30




28 Peceiabien 2213

Name (print) Signature Badge Number | Plate Number
QN M ppstoin 12 D2 4457 9887

Pagé 31



2S5 Pl e rirdeey 2572

Name (print)

Signature

Badge Number

Plate Number

Page 32



Agenda Item 7

HEADING Dealing with Empty Homes through Enforced Sale
Submitted by: Gillian Taylor
Portfolio: Economic Development, Regeneration, & Town Centres

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To put appropriate delegations in place for the use of Enforced Sale powers under
the Law of property Act 1925 to help achieve the aims of the Empty Homes Strategy
2012 - 17.

Recommendation
That the power to commence Enforced Sale under the Law of Property Act 1925 be
delegated to the Public Protection Committee.

Reasons

Enforced Sale is a tool to help change the ownership of an empty home, currently its
use is not in the scheme of delegations. The reason for this report if to ensure
appropriate delegations are in place to use the powers in line with the principles
contained in the Council’'s Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 and the Council’s vision
“To create a borough that is prosperous, clean, healthy and safe”.

1. Background

1.1. The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 identifies Newcastle-under-Lyme’s
approach for returning empty homes to use. This is a two stage approach
starting with encouragement, support and persuasion, moving on to
considering enforcement options. The enforcement options are detailed in
the Empty Homes Strategy and range from requiring works to ensure the
property is not a detriment or a danger to the neighbourhood moving on to
more serious measures such as enforced sale.

1.2. This can be used where despite the best efforts on the part of the Council
properties remain empty for long periods of time. These are the properties
that are most likely to cause problems in the immediate neighbourhood, such
as encouraging anti-social behaviour, affecting the fabric of neighbouring
properties, negatively affecting property prices and generally becoming a
blight on the community.

1.3. The Council’'s Scheme of Delegation does not currently include provisions for
Enforced sale which are set out in the Law of Property Act 1925 and so an
amendment to the Scheme of Delegation is required in order to facilitate the
use of this to implement the strategy.

2. |Issues
21. Enforced Sale is used to bring about a change in ownership. There are two
key prerequisites:

o that bringing the property back into use has sufficient priority within the
context of the Empty Homes Strategy, and

Page 33



2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

that there is an outstanding debt against the property owed to the Council;
this debt may be through work in default charges or Council Tax arrears that
are the subject of a County Court Final Charging Order.

Work in default charges may arise from the Council having to carry out works
to the property to prevent its condition affecting adjoining properties or the
neighbourhood. If the debt can not be recovered from the owner the usual
debt recovery procedures will be followed with a charge being registered
against the property.

Where an outstanding debt is registered as a charge against the property the
Council can enforce that charge and has all the powers and remedies
available to a mortgagee under the Law of Property Act 1925. This means
that the Council can obtain a court order allowing the property to be sold with
all secured debts, being paid out of the sale proceeds.

Many of the Council’s charges have priority over any others registered. Thus,
the Councils ability to recover costs will not be affected by the amount of
equity the owner has in the property.

Figures for 2012/13 demonstrate that the number of properties left vacant for
over two years is increasing. This represents a wasted resource and blights
local communities. Enforced sale demonstrate to our residents, who are
affected by such properties, that the Council will act to improve their
neighbourhood and demonstrates to owners that it will not tolerate properties
simply being left to deteriorate.

The council tax return for 2013 identified 1, 275 empty properties in the
Borough of which 757 had been empty for longer than six months. This is an
increase from the 2012 figure of 679 and the 2011 figure of 655, although
there have been changes to the categorisation of empty homes which may
have contributed to this increase. There are about 15 long term empty
properties that are seriously dilapidated and affecting the local
neighbourhood. It is expected that enforced sale will be used infrequently but
officers consider that it is essential to have it available as part of the full
range of enforcement powers.

3. Option considered and preferred solution

3.1.

3.2.

The Council could consider whether to leave the responsibility for the use of
enforced sale and compulsory purchase as a Council decision. It is
recommended that the responsibility for enforced sale is delegated to the
Public Protection Committee as this would align to their current remit. Due to
the financial commitment required for Compulsory Purchase it is
recommended that this is not delegated.

The proposed action is consistent with the Empty Homes strategy 2012 — 17
and the Housing Standards and Public Health Enforcement Policy.

4. Outcomes Linked to Corporate Priorities

4.1.

Returning Empty Homes back in to use contributes to the delivery of the
Corporate Priority of a clean safe and sustainable borough.

5. Legal and Statutory Implications

Page 34




5.1. Enforced sale is a legal process under the Law of Property Act 1925,
requiring strict adherence to the correct steps and notifications. The owner, if
they can be identified, is kept fully informed of the process and their rights.
The owner can if they wish stop the process by paying the debts owed or
voluntarily selling the property.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1. Enforced sale recommendations will be solely based on the physical
condition of the property and past history of compliance by the owner. There
are therefore no differential equality impacts identified within this report.

7. Financial and Resource Implications

71. Enforced Sale is essentially a debt recovery process which recoups debts
owed to the Council; costs incurred in the process are also recoverable. At
no time will the Council take ownership or responsibility for the property.

7.2. The owner may pay the debt before the process is completed, this will
ensure the debt is repaid but the Council will not be able to recover staff
costs incurred.

7.3. Empty properties brought back into use form part of the new homes bonus
so such action can additionally attract government payments.

8. Major Risks

8.1. There is a risk that the owner pays the debt and stops the process at a late
stage. This does still achieve the aim of recouping debts and highlights to the
owner that the Council is serious in endeavours to prevent homes standing
empty. Sensitive handling of media will be necessary to prevent a risk of
adverse comments from an owner affected by enforced sale. There is a risk
the property is still not brought back into use in a timely fashion depending
on the actions of a new owner. However the risk of this is significantly
reduced than had no action been taken.

8.2. There is also a risk in not taking appropriate action, or at least considering it,
arising from neighbour and police complaints.

9. Background papers

Empty Homes Strategy 2012 - 2017
Team Procedures for Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase — Jan 14

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME

Housing and Regeneration
Team procedures for Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase

1. Background

The Empty Homes Strategy identifies Newcastle-under-Lyme’s approach for returning
empty homes to use. This is a two stage approach starting with encouragement, support
and persuasion, moving on to considering enforcement options. The enforcement
options are detailed in the Empty Homes Strategy and range from requiring works to
ensure the property is not a detriment or a danger to the neighbourhood moving on to
more serious measurers such as enforced sale and compulsory purchase.

2. When to consider Enforced Sale

There are two key prerequisites, that;

e returning the property to use has sufficient priority within the context of the Empty
Homes Strategy.

o there is an outstanding debt against the property owed to the Council, this debt may
be through work in default charges or Council Tax arrears.

Work in default charges may arise from the Council having to carry out works to the
property to prevent its condition affecting adjoining properties or the neighbourhood. If
the debt can not be recovered from the owner the usual debt recovery procedures will

be followed with a charge being registered against the property.

3. Enforced Sale Legislation - Law of Property Act 1925

Where an outstanding debt is registered as a charge against the property the Council
can enforce that charge and has all the powers and remedies available to a mortgagee
under the Law of Property Act 1925. This means that the Council can obtain a court
order allowing the property to be sold with all secured debts, being paid out of the
proceeds.

Many of the Council’s charges have priority over any others registered. Thus, our
ability to recover costs will not be affected by the amount of equity the owner has in the
property. However, if there is only a small amount of equity and it appears that the
proceeds of a sale would be insufficient to recover funds due, other options may be
considered more appropriate.

Appendix 1 sets out the statutory provisions where the registration of the land charge
will take priority over other registered charges and also where interest can be claimed
on the monies outstanding.

4. Enforced Sale Process
Where enforced sale is considered the appropriate action a report should be complied
seeking permission to proceed. Use of the Law of Property Act 1925 is not within the

Team procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 P 37
Housing Services — December 2013 ag e



constitution, therefore only Cabinet can approve its use or delegate this decision to the
Public Protection Committee. This report should include;

* details of the owner or interested parties,

* copies of relevant correspondence with the owner,

» summary of activities to date to bring the property into use,

* details of outstanding debts,

* condition of the property and impact it being empty is having on the

neighbourhood.

If approved to proceed the matter will be referred to Legal Services, legal processes

will then include;

e Serving a notice under the Law of Property Act 1925 requiring payment of monies
due within 3 months

e  Writing to the owner, and any other chargees, advising the Council intends to
enforce a sale. This letter should contain a statement of how the action is
proportionate in accordance with The Human Rights Act 1998.

e Once default of payment is apparent, the Council can submit evidence to land
registry applying for registration of the Charge.

When the Charge has been registered by the Land Registry, the property can be
marketed for sale.

If the property is not registered with land registry the legal process is more complex and
only certain debts can be registered.

5. Enforced Sale - Marketing of the Property
Usually properties will be sold by auction as this demonstrates the best price possible.
The Council's legal, surveyors and marketing costs can be deducted from the sale price.

6. Likelihood of Success

An owner or interested party can stop the enforced sale at any point by occupying the
property, selling it voluntarily or paying off the debt. The first two still achieve the aim
of the Empty Homes Strategy; the third will not directly but should demonstrate the
Council’s commitment to dealing with empty homes. Compulsory purchase may be
considered if the property continues to be empty.

7. When to consider Compulsory Purchase
Compulsory purchase should be considered an action of last resort where there is no
other realistic prospect of the property being brought back into use. Factors taken into
consideration will be:
e length of time the property has been empty,
history of compliance by the owner,
previous enforcement activity carried out,
detrimental impact the property is having on the area,
impacts on adjoining and neighbouring properties,
nuisance arising from the property including anti social behaviour and
squatting,
e concerns identified by the police.

P procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17
ag e 5 ing Services — December 2013



8. Legislative Basis for Compulsory Purchase Orders

The Housing Act 1985, section 17 gives Local Authorities the power to acquire
buildings and land through compulsory purchase for the purposes of providing housing
accommodation.

9. Compulsory Purchase Process

Where compulsory purchase is considered the best option a report must be prepared for
Council. This is due to the serious nature of the action, potential cost implications and
to meet the terms of the constitution. This report should include:

e adescription of the property and its condition,

e description of the impact the property is having on neighbouring properties and
the local community,
land registry details of all owners and persons with an interest in the property,

e details of all actions to encourage the owners / interested parties to return the
property to use,
details of enforcement action taken to return the property to use,

e statement of why compulsory purchase is considered a suitable option,
Statement that all previous attempts have failed to bring the property to use and
no further ones can be identified apart from Compulsory Purchase,
the Council’s proposals for the property if successful,
financial implications.

If agreed Legal Services will proceed with preparing the necessary paperwork for an
application to the appropriate Government Office and notifying people identified as
having an interest in the property. If a Compulsory Purchase order application is
unopposed, the Government Office will normally issue a decision within two months. If
it is opposed a public enquiry will be held.

Statements and evidence will need to be presented at any Public enquiry to support the
Council’s case. The Council is responsible for paying the administrative costs and
expenses for the Inquiry.

If successful a General Vesting Declaration is made allowing the Council to take
possession.

10. Compulsory Purchase - Marketing of the Property
Usually properties will be put up for sale by auction as this demonstrates the best price
possible. This should be done as soon as possible after possession.

11. Compulsory Purchase - Compensation
Ultimately the owner is entitled to the full market value of the property.

12. Human Rights Act 1998

Consideration of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 must be taken account
of by the Council for both actions. In particular, Part 1, Article 8 “the right to respect
for... private and family life..., home and... correspondence”, and Protocol 1, Article 1
“peaceful enjoyment of... possessions”, need to be balanced against the general
benefits and rights of neighbours and the surrounding community.

Team procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 P 39
Housing Services — December 2013 ag e



A statement that the intended action of the Council in exercising its powers is
proportionate, in accordance with the Act, should be included in reports.

13. Procedure Summary

The flow chart in Appendix 2 gives a summary of the responsibilities and activities
involved under the Empty Homes Strategy. Appendix 3 outlines the work in default
process which may result in a debt being secured against the property.

Appendix 1: Statutes Which Allow an Outstanding Debt to be lodged as a Charge

Statute Priority over other Can interest
charges be claimed

Public Health Act 1936, Section 291 YES YES
Local Government (Miscellaneous) YES NO
Provisions Act 1976,
Section 33
Highways Act 1980, Section 305 YES NO
Building Act 1984, Section 107 YES NO
Housing Act 1985 paragraph 7 of Schedule YES YES
10
Ss 189/190 (repair notices) Ss 352/372
(HMO's)
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and NO NO
regulation 14(2) of the Town and Country
Planning General Regulations 1992, Section
178
Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section YES YES
81A
Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 YES YES

P procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17
ag e ing Services — December 2013



Appendix 2: Flow Diagram - Enforced Sale

Empty property identified through proactive work or service request

\ 4

Able to identify owner through land registry or local research?

A 4

Yes

No

Communication with owner to understand reasons
why empty and negotiate / persuade and offer help and
guidance to bring the property back into use

|

Property brought back into use?

f Yes ——Mm

No

No further action required

Continue negotiation with
owner (or work to identify
owner)

—»{ * Prevention of Damage by Pest Act 1949

+— Yes

Yes

Yes

\ 4

Is enforcement action is appropriate under?
* Public Health Act 1936
* Building Act 1984

* Town and County Planning Act 1990

A 4

Is there an outstanding
charge on the property?

Serve notice

\ 4

Work carried out by owner

No

A

Works carried out by NUL in owners
default (see appendix 3 for WID process)

|

WID invoice paid

No

A

Register the debt as a charge
against the property

Yes

\ 4

Is there a likelihood of the property being brought back into use and or the debt being settled?

No

A

Consider Enforced Sale

Team procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 P
age 41

Housing Services — December 2013




Commence Enforced Sale

A 4

Is the property registered with land charges?

A4

Does the charge result from action under;

* Public Health Act 1936 Section 291

Yes * Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949
* Building Act 1984 Section 107

A

y

Refer to legal services including full case
details

Legal Services — serve notice on the owner
giving three months to settle the debt

A\ 4
Yes

A

\ 4

Legal Services Processes complaint with
Land Registry requirements

Debt may be paid
by owner or other
interested party at
any point which
halts the enforced
sale process

\ 4

Communication with the owner and

interested parties re intention to market the v v
property Continue to monitor the property taking
appropriate enforcement action / work
v with the owner or interested parties to
return it to use

Marketing of the property

A 4

\ 4

Debt recovery and legal processes

Consider Compulsory Purchase

If compulsory purchase is considered
appropriate — prepare a report for cabinet

A 4

Change in ownership secured and debt
recovered — continue to monitor the property
to ensure it is returned to use

with full reasoning and financial
implications.

If approved by Cabinet refer to Legal
Services to proceed.

procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17

Pag e ézzng Services — December 2013



Appendix 3: Work in Default Process

Works in default of a statutory notice

Write a specification for the works and obtain estimates

l | l

<£5000 — 1 quote / £5000 - £30,000 >£30,000

schedule of rates Minimum of 2 quotes Contract rules apply
Head of Service Director approval Cabinet approval
approval

|

Issue specific instructions to the contractor

|

Confirm work carried out satisfactorily (document any changes)

Arrange payment of contractor’s invoice

|

Calculate officer and admin fees

|

Serve formal demand paperwork and invoice for works and on costs

Land charges notified of the charge

|

If money is not received — copies of relevant paperwork sent to finance with
instructions to commence debt recovery

Team procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17 P 43
Housing Services — December 2013 ag e



P 46 procedures — Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase under The Empty Homes Strategy 2012 — 17
ag e 80 Sing Services — December 2013



Agenda Iltem 8

REPORT TITLE Review of the Council’s Constitution

Submitted by: Head of Business Improvements, Central Services and
Partnerships

Portfolio: Communications, Policy and Partnerships.

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To improve the efficiency and accessibility of the Constitution and to ensure that it is up to date and
fully complies with the law.

Recommendations

a) That Council adopts the amendments to the Constitution recommended by the
Constitution Review Working Group and endorsed by the Transformation and
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

b) That the Constitution Review Working Group continues its review of the constitution.

Reasons

The proposed amendments are considered necessary to improve the efficiency and accessibility of
the Constitution and to ensure that it is up to date and fully complies with the law.

1. Background

1.1 At the Transformation and Resources Committee meeting on 7" June 2010 it was resolved
to set up a working group to review the Constitution. The initial purpose of the review was to
improve the Constitution so as to increase the understanding and accessibility of Members,
officers and the public by recommending amendments and the removal of unnecessary
provisions.

1.2 The Working Group has continued to meet throughout 2013/2014 and the recommendations
contained within this report were considered and agreed by the Transformation and
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee at it's meetings on 22" January and 26"
March 2014.

1.3 The recommendations are intended to enhance the democratic processes of the Council;
ensure that the Council is acting in accordance with statute; and ensure the Council’'s
Constitution reflects the current processes of the Council. A full discussion on the
recommendations will ensure any changes are fully thought through, transparent and robust.
It is recognised that some of the new processes may need to evolve over time to further
enhance the democratic process

2. Issues

2.1 The Constitution is the set of rules that describe and constrain how the Council operates,
how its decisions are made and the procedures to be followed.

2.2 The approach taken by the Working Group has been to:

1 Page 45




Page 46

(i) Remove obvious duplications

(i) Identify contradictions and remove the parts that do not accord with local practice or
law

(iii) Remove obsolete, inaccurate or unnecessary references to law or processes

(iv) Simplify wording and improve the indexing

(v) Take best practice from a number of other Constitutions.

Options Considered

a). Scrutiny Chairs/Vice Chairs Group

The Working Group has had extensive discussions regarding the Overview and Scrutiny Co-
ordinating Committee. They reached the conclusion that much of the work of this committee
could be completed outside of the formal local government committee structures.

In its place, therefore, an informal Scrutiny Group would be setup, the Membership of which
would consist of the Chairs and Vice Chairs of all the Scrutiny Committees. Group Leaders
would also be invited to attend the meeting. Senior officers and Cabinet Members would be
asked to certain meetings to discuss the scrutiny process and advise on topics on the
various scrutiny work plans. The committee has previously considered areas which were
considered to be cross-cutting such as the Community Centre Review. The Scrutiny Chairs’
Group in future could agree which committee would be most suitable to consider topics
which are believed to cross the remit of two or more scrutiny committees.

The Scrutiny Chairs’ meeting would be diarised and informal agendas sent out in advance of
the meeting, with notes taken on the actions coming out of each meeting. The Chair of each
Scrutiny Committee could provide an update to their respective committees as and when
required. The suggestion has also been made that the group could rotate the chair of the
meeting on a regular basis.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating Committee should be replaced with an
informal Scrutiny Chairs’ Group meeting at least bi-monthly

b). The Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee

The Constitution Review Working Group discussed the title of the current Transformation
and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee. It has been suggested that this title no
longer reflects the Council’'s corporate priorities. The remit of the Committee could be
extended to include matters relating to the priority of the Council to become a Co-operative
Council. This suggested change reflects the corporate priority of ‘becoming a co-operative
council delivering high quality community driven services’ (replacing the former priority of
‘transforming the Council to achieve excellence’). The Working Group therefore
recommended that the title of the committee should change to ‘The Finance, Resources and
Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny Committee.’

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the Transformation and Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee be renamed
the ‘Finance, Resources and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee.’



2. That the remit be changed to reflect the work being done under the Council’s
corporate priority of ‘becoming a Co-operative Council delivering high quality
community driven services’.

c). Health Scrutiny Committee

The Constitution Working Group has given consideration to the governance arrangements of
the Health Scrutiny Committee. The current Borough Council Health Scrutiny Committee
consists of seven Members and does not have a Vice Chair. It is felt that there will be benefit
to the democratic process if the membership of this committee is increased to eleven in line
with the other scrutiny committees of the Council. The committee should also expand its
remit to cover work areas where there is apparent duplication with the other Scrutiny
Committees, in particular the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Communities Scrutiny Committee
and the Active and Cohesive Scrutiny Committee. It should be noted that the current Health
Scrutiny Committee is technically a Joint Committee with the County Council and is subject
to a ‘Joint Code of Working Agreement with them. There is one County Council
representative on the committee and this arrangement would remain in place even if the total
membership of the Borough’s Health Committee was increased.

The Working Group came to the view that the Health Scrutiny Committee should cover the
topic of health improvement (currently with the Active and Cohesive Scrutiny Committee).
The Group also felt that alcohol and drugs, from a public health perspective and sometimes
considered by the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Communities Scrutiny Committee should be
solely within the remit of the Health Scrutiny Committee. Specific health issues relating to old
people should also be covered by the Health Scrutiny Committee and removed from the
remit of the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Scrutiny Committee with the Active and Cohesive
Scrutiny Committee taking on issues relating to social and cultural aspects of older people.
To better reflect this extended remit it is proposed that the Committee change its name to
the Health and Well-Being Scrutiny Committee. The suggested terms of reference are
below: -

Health and Well-Being Scrutiny Remit

¢ Commissioning of and provision of health care services, whether acute or
preventative/early intervention affecting residents of the borough of Newcastle under
Lyme

o Staffordshire Health and Well Being Board and associated committees, sub-
committees and operational/commissioning groups

¢ North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG

o Staffordshire County Council Public Health

e Better Care Fund

e University Hospital North Staffordshire (UHNS)

¢ Combined Healthcare and Stoke and Staffordshire NHS Partnership

e Other health organisations within the Borough area such as GP surgeries

¢ NULBC Health and Well-Being Strategy and Staffordshire Health and Well Being
Board Strategy ‘Living Well in Staffordshire 2013-2018’

3 Page 47



Page 48

e Health Improvement (including but not exclusively) diet, nutrition, smoking, physical
activity, poverty (including Poverty & Licensing Policy)

e Specific health issues for old people

e Alcohol and drug issues

e Formal consultations

e Local partnerships (e.g. Newcastle Partnership)

e Matters referred directly from Staffordshire County Council

o Referring matters to Staffordshire County Council for consideration where a problem
has been identified within the Borough of Newcastle-under-Lyme

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the Health Scrutiny Committee expands its remit to include health improvement
and alcohol & Drug issues with new terms of reference agreed which should not
contradict the Joint Code of Working with the County Council.

2. That the Membership of the Committee is extended to 11 Members and that a Vice
Chair is appointed.

3. That Staffordshire County Council is notified of the new arrangements.

4. That the Committee is renamed the ‘Health and Well-Being Scrutiny Committee.’

d). Scrutiny Committee Remits

A recommendation came from the Working Group for the remits of all the Scrutiny
Committees to be listed on their work plans. This measure has now been implemented and
each committee chair will ask their own committee to feedback on the current remits. . Any
changes to these will be reported to Full Council.

e). Scrutiny Committee Mechanisms

RECOMMENDATION

The Working Group recommends that the word “overview” be removed from all scrutiny
committee titles

f). ltems on the Work Plan

RECOMMENDATION

That a Member of the Council is entitled to ask for an item to be included on the work plan of
a committee and that the Chair must give a valid reason if this request is to be declined.

g). Public Question Time
The Constitution Working Group recognises that there is currently no provision for the public
to be able to ask questions at a Scrutiny Committee meeting. The Working Group was of the




unanimous view that a member of the public should be able to serve notice of a question
which falls within the remit of a Scrutiny Committee. The Working Group further proposes
that a member of the public should be able to ask a question if they served it with two clear
working days’ notice. The chair would be able to use their discretion if the deadline was
missed. The item allowing for a public question time would therefore become a standing one
similar to apologies for absence. A limit of a total of three questions per meeting would be
permitted, with the relevant chair having the ultimate decision on the permissibility of the
questions (in order to avoid any legal issues arising). Consideration has also been given to
whether the practice should be introduced to Cabinet meetings.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That Public Question Time for Scrutiny Committees and Cabinet is incorporated into
the Council’s Constitution.

2. That a member of the public should serve two clear days’ notice in writing of any
such question to the appropriate Committee Officer.

3. That the chair should assess the permissibility of the questions. The chair’s decision
will be final.

4. That a maximum of three public questions is asked at any one Scrutiny Committee
meeting or Cabinet meeting, but no right of reply to the response will be permitted
from members of the public, nor any follow-up questions by the original questioner or
any other individual. The individual asking the question can ask one question only
during the meeting

5. That a maximum time of three minutes is provided for each person to ask an initial
question or make an initial statement to the Committee.

6. That a rule be included to disallow any questions that are deemed to be repetitious or
vexatious.

h). Portfolio Holder Question Time

The Constitution Working Group acknowledges that Portfolio Holder Question Time has
been trialled at some of the Scrutiny Committees and has been received favourably to date.
It is not proposed that this become a standing item but could perhaps be held every six
months or so at the discretion of the chair of each of the Scrutiny Committees. Portfolio
Holder Question Time provides an opportunity for the Portfolio Holder to talk about their
priorities and work objectives and a chance to inform the Scrutiny Committee of any issues
or concerns that they may currently be facing within their portfolio. It is also an opportunity
for them to flag up areas within their remit that they think may benefit from scrutiny in the
future, including policy development. Portfolio Holder Question time is also an opportunity for
scrutiny committee members to ask questions to the portfolio holder. This in turn could help
inform the Committee’s work plan, if appropriate.

RECOMMENDATION

That the concept of Portfolio Holder Question time at Scrutiny Committees is ratified in the
Council’s constitution.

5 Page 49



Page 50

i). Chairing of Meetings

Whilst the Constitution Review Working Group recognises that Member training and
development is not strictly within their remit, the subject has arisen within the discussions.
The Working Group recognises that some Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs are fairly new in
their positions. As a result, the Working Group wishes to ensure that all Scrutiny Chairs and
Vice-Chairs are offered learning and development opportunities, which could include in-
house training; observing meetings at other Councils; and attending official external courses.
The Centre for Public Scrutiny also offers a number of useful guides.

RECOMMENDATION

That learning and development opportunities for Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny be
enhanced within current budget constraints.

j)- Cabinet Panels

A definition of Cabinet Panels and their purpose has been received and considered by the
Working Group. This has been revised and can be included as part of the proposals to
amend the Constitution. This document is attached as an Appendix.

RECOMMENDATION

That Cabinet Panels be formally recognised in the Council’s Constitution (detailing how and
why they are set up; how their work is communicated; the need for terms of reference; and
details on their membership)

k). Dispensations

The Constitution Review Working Group identified that Dispensations were not included in
the Constitution. A document has therefore been produced and is attached as an Appendix.
It outlines the purpose and effect of dispensations; the procedure for requesting them and
the criteria applied in determining dispensation requests and the terms of these
dispensations.

RECOMMENDATION

That Dispensations be added to the Constitution.

). Staffing — Terms of Reference

The Constitution Working Group recommended that Item number 2...

“To make representations to the Local Government Association and/or the Government or
other organisations about any matter relating to employees of the Council”...

be removed from the Constitution.

This has been proposed as the practice of the Council is for group leaders to raise matters
relating to employees via their respective LGA political grouping.

RECOMMENDATION

That item 2 be removed from the Constitution



m). Pre-Cabinet Scrutiny

The Constitution Review Working Group acknowledges that pre-Cabinet scrutiny is an area
where the Scrutiny process can have a positive impact. The pre-Cabinet approach can help
inform decisions and reassure the Council that the decision making process is robust, fair
and transparent. It is evident from looking at the work plans of all of the Scrutiny Committees
that this is being developed already. The Working Group also wishes to include a statement
in the Constitution that formally recognises the important function of pre-Cabinet Scrutiny.

RECOMMENDATION

That a statement be written into the Constitution formally acknowledging the importance of
pre-Cabinet Scrutiny as a function of Scrutiny Committees.

n). Policy Development

The Working Group acknowledges that policy development is an important area where
Scrutiny Committees can have a positive impact. Draft policies are often received by
Scrutiny before being finalised, allowing Members to have an input into the process. As part
of Portfolio Holder Question Time sessions, the Portfolio Holder is asked to consider areas
that may benefit from the input of Scrutiny in the field of policy development. Whilst the
Working Group acknowledges that policy development and review is already referred to as a
Scrutiny function in the Constitution the Working Group also wishes Council to reaffirm this
as an important part of Scrutiny’s work

RECOMMENDATION

That Members reaffirm the importance of policy development as a part of the Scrutiny
process.

0). Officer Presentations at Scrutiny Committees

The LGA Peer Review in 2013 recommended that officer presentations at Scrutiny
Committees should be limited to 15 minutes. Whilst the Working Group sees a benefit in
limiting presentations to allow a full debate by Members of each committee, it also believes
that the Chair should have discretion to waive such a limitation if there is good reason to do
so and that the recommendation should cover all presentations, not just those given by
officers. The group was unsure as to whether a section relating to this should be included in
the Constitution or whether it was sufficient to communicate this to those giving
presentations at the time of their invitation.

RECOMMENDATION

That presentations to Scrutiny Committees be limited to 10 minutes unless permission is
sought from the Chair to extend the time of the presentation before the start of the meeting.

p). Changing the Constitution — Process

The Constitution Working Group felt that there should be a nominated Council officer
responsible for updating the Constitution. They also considered the definition of a ‘minor
change’. They concluded that ‘minor changes’ should be defined as administrative errors,
typing mistakes, omissions etc and should only be taken to Council on annual basis, with
changes made to the Constitution in the interim by the nominated officer.

7 Page 51



Page 52

The Constitution currently contains the following paragraph regarding approval of changes:-

‘Changes to the Constitution will only be approved by the Full Council after consideration of
the proposal by the Monitoring Officer, save that the Monitoring Officer may make
consequential changes to the Constitution, to reflect resolutions of the Council or Cabinet or
decisions properly made under delegated powers and changes of fact and law subject to
regular notification of Members to such changes. *

The group recommends that the following wording be removed:

‘[o]r Cabinet or decisions properly made under delegated powers and changes of fact and
law subject to regular notification of Members to such changes.’

Therefore, with the exception of consequential changes as defined above (including minor
changes); it is only Full Council that can authorise a change in the Constitution. Committees
and working groups can continue to recommend changes to Full Council. Any minutes which
include decisions where changes to the Constitution are made will be sent to the nominated
officer responsible for ongoing updates of the Constitution, and this will include policy
changes and updates. Changes to the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be
amended and recorded by the nominated officer subject to the approval of the Monitoring
Officer. A change in the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be seen as a
consequential change and therefore will not require approval by Full Council. Regular
notification of such changes would be reported to Members in line with the current provision
in the Constitution.

The Working Group were of the view that the Constitution should be made available in PDF
format so it is easier to navigate and copies of the Constitution should be provided to newly-
elected Members at their induction by the Democratic Services section.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That an officer is nominated to make the necessary approved changes to the
Constitution.

2. That the following wording from the current Constitution relating to the approval of
changes be removed:

‘[o]r Cabinet or decisions properly made under delegated powers and changes of fact and
law subject to regular notification of Members to such changes.’

3. That ‘minor changes’ to the Constitution should be defined as administrative errors,
typing mistakes, omissions etc and should only be reported to Council on an annual
basis, with the necessary changes made to the Constitution in the interim.

4. That any changes to the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be amended
and recorded by the nominated officer subject to the approval of the Monitoring
Officer. A change in the Scheme of Delegation relating to officers will be seen as a
consequential change and therefore not require approval by Council.

5. That regular notification of changes in the Constitution will be reported to Members in
line with the current provision in the Constitution

6. That, with the exception of ‘minor changes’ and consequential changes (as already
defined within the Constitution), it is only Council that can authorise a change in the



Constitution. Committees and working groups can continue to recommend changes
to Council.

7. That all changes to committee membership be reported to the next available Council,
unless otherwise required

q). Scheme of Delegations

The Scheme of Delegation is currently being updated by relevant officers prior to being
forwarded to Full Council for agreement

r). Substitutes

Full Council have already established their support for substitutes in principle. The
Constitution Review Working Group has also looked at the actual process for substitutions.
The Working Group propose that, at the Annual Council Meeting when the Membership for
each Committee is put forward, that substitutes for each Committee are also confirmed.

The Working Group considered a number of options including

e That, for every Member on the each committee, there can be one substitute. For
example, if there were 7 Labour Members, 2 Conservative Members and 1 Liberal
Democrat, there would be 7 Labour substitutes, 2 Conservative substitutes and 1 Liberal
Democrat substitute; and

¢ Not to have a substitute for every member on a committee

The Working Group also considered whether training for all substitutes will be required for
regulatory committees.

In addition, nominated substitutes could represent any Member of the same political group.

The Working Group proposed that at least 24 hours notice should be served to the Chair of
the Committee by the Member apologising. Where possible, it is the responsibility of the
Member apologising to arrange a substitute and this responsibility should not be delegated
to an officer of the Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the principle of substitutes being nominated for Members missing committee
meetings is agreed

2. That for every Member of a committee, there can be one substitute nominated

3. That any Member who is due to miss a meeting needs to inform the Chair of the
relevant committee 24 hours before the committee is due to meet (and that it is the
Member concerned who does this)

4. That at any one meeting there should be no more than two substitutes per political
grouping present

5. That training is provided for nominated substitutes on regulatory committees

9 Page 53



6. That, where there are Planning Committee site visits involved, substitutes should be
allowed to attend and vote at the Planning Committee even if they have not been on
the site visit

Transformation & Resources O & S Committee agreed to recommendations 1-5 but agreed
that recommendation 6 should not be implemented at this time, pending further work on the
implications of such as change.

s). Employee Consultative Committee Constitution Change.

RECOMMENDATION

That Section 1.1 of the Employees’ Consultative Committee Constitution and Function be amended
as follows:

The committee shall consist of 15 members, 7 of whom (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Employer’s
Side) shall be appointed by the Borough Council and 8 of whom (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Employees side) shall be employees appointed by the recognised trades unions in accordance with
paragraph 13.

4. Proposal

The report provides a number of recommendations for Members to consider and the background to
explain how the Constitution Review Working Group has come to put forward these
recommendations. The Constitution Review Working Group’s ‘parent’ Committee is the
Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee which has also endorsed all of
the recommendations listed in the report.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy and Corporate Priorities

The Constitution governs the way the Council works. These changes are intended to enable the
public, Members and officers to engage more effectively with the decision making processes of the
Council and also ensure that processes are lawful. Improvements to processes are key to the
corporate priority of becoming a Co-operative Council.

An effective Constitution contributes to the overall ethical wellbeing of the Council, and helps to
ensure a culture of high ethical standards, which the public and the Council’s partners can have
confidence in. This will thereby also contribute to the Council’s priority of becoming a Co-operative
Council.

7. Legal and Statutory Implications

The Council is required by common law and statute (principally the Local Government Acts 1972
and 2000, and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989) to regulate its proceedings and to
have an up to date Constitution which is fit for purpose.

8. Major risks

That the Constitution will be inaccessible, procedures will be inefficient or decisions are vitiated by
reason of unlawful procedure with consequential damage to the reputation, finances and objectives
of the Council.

10. Financial Implications

Page 54 10



No significant additional resources will be required in relation to the recommendations. The
Constitution provides the framework and rules for ensuring value for money.

11. Key Decision Information

The Constitution affects all decisions and therefore all wards. The majority of the Constitution deals
with non-Executive matters.

12. Key Decision Information

The Constitution affects all decisions and therefore all wards. The majority of the Constitution deals
with non-Executive matters.

13. List of Appendices

Cabinet Panels
Dispensations

14. Background Papers

The Constitution
Minutes of the Transformation and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Minutes of the Constitution Working Group

15. Management Sign-Off

Each of the designated boxes need to be signed off and dated before going to
Executive Director/Corporate Service Manager for sign off.

Signed Dated

Financial Implications
Discussed and Agreed

Lead Officer — Dave Roberts

Risk Implications
Discussed and Agreed

Lead Officer —Mark Bailey

Legal Implications
Discussed and Agreed

Lead Officer — Mark Bailey

Equalities Implications
Discussed and Agreed

Lead Officer — Mark Bailey

H.R. Implications Discussed
and Agreed

Lead Officer —

Report Agreed by:
Executive Director/
Head of Service

11 Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda Iltem 9

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

REPORT TITLE Proposed Changes to Electoral Arrangements
Submitted by: Chief Executive — John Sellgren
Portfolio: Communications, Policy and Partnerships

Finance and Resources

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

Purpose of the Report

To advise the council of the proposals regarding changes to the election cycle for Newcastle
under Lyme Borough Council and to outline the steps that need to be taken should the Council
choose to amend this cycle..

Recommendations

a) That consultation on proposals to change the election cycle from thirds to whole
council elections is commenced.

b) That subject to agreement to (a), the consultation runs from the start of July 2014
until the end of August 2014.

c¢) That a report on the outcome of the consultation be brought back to a special
meeting of the Council in October 2014.

d) That the Council determines at that special meeting whether to move to whole
council elections or whether to retain the current cycle of elections by thirds.

1. Background

Newcastle Borough Council currently elects members by thirds which means that there
are elections every three years out of four involving NBC seats. The Council currently has
60 elected members representing 24 wards and each Councillor is elected for a term of
four years.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 allows each Council
the opportunity to consider passing a resolution to change to whole Council elections.
Section 33 of the Act outlines the steps that must be taken. The Act states that a Council
must not pass the resolution unless it “has taken reasonable steps to consult such
persons as it thinks appropriate on the proposed change”. The resolution must then be
passed:

a) At a meeting which is specially convened for the purpose of deciding the
resolution; and

b) By a majority of at least two thirds of the elected Members voting on it.
If the resolution is passed then the Council must produce an explanatory document

available for public inspection and give the Electoral Commission notice that it has
passed the resolution.

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED
1 Page 57



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

The resolution must specify the year for the first ordinary elections of the Council at which
all Councillors are to be elected and the year specified must not be a County Council
elections year. Therefore the first year for whole council elections must be specified.

Issues
Moving to all out elections could provide the following benefits:

. Greater political stability and ability to take a longer term view of policy
implementation and decision making;

. Financial savings;

More effective political management without the need for an annual election

campaign;

Improved corporate and strategic planning over a four year period,;

Better planning and delivery of member development programmes;

Greater likelihood of contested elections and reduced likelihood of voter fatigue;

Less confusion resulting from ‘combinations’ of elections for different organisations

(e.g. Parliament; European Parliament; County Council; Borough Council and

town/parish councils) and also the election for the Police & Crime Commissioner

. Potentially higher electoral turnout due to the more decisive nature of all out
elections

Potential advantages of electing by thirds include:

° More opportunity for electors to vote and participate in local democracy;

o Greater consistency of councillors by reducing the potential for large scale change
at the same time;
A potentially greater mix of new and experienced councillors;

o Fewer candidates required for nominations, thereby reducing the chance of non-
contested seats;
. Political make-up of the council is potentially more reflective of the changing views

of the electorate;
More opportunities for people to stand for election;

o Greater accountability as councillors are required to engage and defend decisions
on a more regular basis; and
. Continuing to employ a method more familiar to voters

In terms of potential disadvantages, each approach may result in:

o Whole Council elections may be more complex to administer;

o The count for whole council elections would probably take longer and additional
staff time may be required to deal with the likely increase in nomination papers;

o Additional postal votes and postal vote applications and filling of ballot boxes

o There may also be additional cost due to extra polling stations and staff being
required.

Having set out these factors, however, these additional costs would however be
outweighed by the fact that elections would only be taking place every four years (with the
resulting cost savings that that will bring.

As said, should a resolution introducing whole council elections pass, then the year for
whole council elections must be specified — this need not be the year after the resolution

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Page 58



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

is passed and consideration should be given to other elections happening that might
coincide with a move to whole council elections.

3. Options Considered

Option A - that Council agrees to consult on whole council elections and also agrees to
receive a further detailed report following this consultation in October 2014
(Recommended)

Option B - that the Council chooses not to consult and the current cycle of elections is
retained (Not Recommended)

4. Proposal

That consultation on proposals to change the election cycle from thirds to whole council
elections commences.

That this consultation runs from the beginning of July 2014 until the end of August 2014.
That the consultation process includes the following:

o A3 posters in 15 community centres, Jubilee 2, The Civic Offices, The Guildhall,
Kidsgrove Leisure Centre and Kidsgrove Customer Service Centre.

e Article in the August edition of the Reporter Magazine

o Officer visits to Parish Council meetings, Town Council meetings and LAP
meetings in July 2014.

e Gazeebo at the Farmers Market in Newcastle Town Centre and Kidsgrove Town
Centre.

o Publicity event in Kidsgrove library
o Extensive use of the Council website including an online consultation form
o Leaflets
e Facebook and Twitter
5. Reasons for Preferred Solution

The preferred solution is in line with the requirements of The Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Localism Act 2011 and potentially offers
the advantages set out in this report.

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strateqy and Corporate Priorities

e Creating a Borough of opportunity
e A co-operative council delivering high quality, community driven services

7. Legal and Statutory Implications

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, states that a district
council currently subject to election by thirds or halves may resolve to change to whole
Council elections under section 34 of the Act. Under the same Act, the Council may not
resolve to move from elections by thirds to elections by halves.

Section 24 of the Localism Act 2011 amends the timetable for changing English district
Councils’ electoral schemes, enabling a Council to choose when their electoral cycle can
change.

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED
3 Page 59



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

8. Financial and Resource Implications

The respective costs of the two electoral options for the period 2014 to 2020 are set out in the
table below. Each whole council election will cost slightly more than each election by thirds as
they involve elections across the whole Borough, but the overall saving stands at £330,000

during the stated period.

Elections By Thirds Whole Council Elections
May 2015 Costs split with Parliamentary | Costs split with Parliamentary
(parliamentary only covers 17 | (parliamentary only covers 17
Wards) Wards)
£100,000 £105,000
May 2016 Split with PCC Elections
£80,000
May 2017 County Council Elections
All monies reimbursed
May 2018 £160,000 Borough only Elections
in 20 Wards
May 2019 Cost split with European | Cost split with  European
Elections Elections
£80,000 £85,000
May 2020 Costs split with Parliamentary
(parliamentary only covers 17
Wards)
£100,000
TOTALS £520,000 £190,000
Saving of £330,000 over the period 2015 to 2020

9. Background Papers

e The local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

e Section 24 of the Localism Act 2011

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED

Page 60




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Report from the Public Protection Committee held on 31st March 2014 - Age of Hackney Carriage Vehicles
	3.Public Protection Committee age policy hackney carriage and phvs 2014, 31/03/2014 Public Protection Committee
	3a.PublicProtectioncommitteeHackeyVehicleAges(2), 31/03/2014 Public Protection Committee
	3b.CarAgeAppendix(3), 31/03/2014 Public Protection Committee
	3c  Age restrict appendix, 31/03/2014 Public Protection Committee

	7 Report from the Public Protection Committee  - Enforced Sale Delegated Authority
	Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase team procedures - April 2014

	8 Review of the Council's Constitution
	9 Proposed Changes to Electoral Arrangements

